
MEMORANDUM 

To: Professor Burch 

From: Marcol David Harvey 

Date: March 21, 2017 

Subject: Kugel Mesh  

On December 6, 2006, Ms. Trudy Thomas, a Colorado Springs native, had a Kugel Mesh 

Hernia Repair Patch, sold by C.R. Bard, implanted to treat her hernia. Doctors later discovered 

that the tissue surrounding Thomas’ Kugel mesh had died due to gangrene. Five surgeries later, 

Thomas’ Kugel mesh was removed, and her surgeon informed her that it caused the infection.  

In 2008, Thomas joined the Kugel mesh litigation against C.R. Bard. On July 6, 2011, CR. Bard 

Inc. extended a settlement offer totaling $184 million to settle 2,600 lawsuits. Thomas received a 

small five-figure settlement, because it was believed that her Kugel mesh ring did not break 

inside her.  

“I said right away I’m not taking it. I want to go to trial,” said Thomas. “They kept 

leading me on. Now I want out of it because I’m getting cut down on my food stamps and 

disability until I have proof that I did not accept the [settlement] money,” said Thomas.  

Thomas dissatisfied with her settlement offer and swarmed in debt, sent a notarized and 

certified letter to all attorneys and law firms involved refusing to accept the settlement. The law 

firms constantly called and sent letters to Ms. Thomas advising her to accept the settlement. It is 

unclear whether Ms. Thomas ever accepted the settlement offer.1 

                                                
1 Mesh Medical Device Newsdesk, Trudy Thomas: Suffering in Silence and Financially after 
Kugel Mesh Settlement, http://www.meshmedicaldevicenewsdesk.com/trudy-thomas-suffering-
in-silence-and-financially-after-kugel-mesh-settlement/. 


